Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview Committee held at the Hub,
Mareham Road, Horncastle, Lincolnshire LN9 6PH on Tuesday, 25th
March, 2025 at 10.00 am.

PRESENT

Councillor Fiona M. Martin, M.B.E. (Chairman)
Councillor Carleen Dickinson (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Dick Edginton, Stephen Evans, Neil Jones, James Knowles and
Jill Makinson-Sanders.

Councillor David Hall and Ruchira Yarsley attended the Meeting as
Substitutes.

Councillor Daniel Simpson attended the Meeting as an Observer.

GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE:

Councillor William Gray - Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better
Ageing

Hannah Taylor-Dales - Head of Business Development, ACIS Group

Claire Woodward - Director of Community Investment, ACIS Group

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Brendan Arnold - Interim Finance Director and S151 Officer

James Gilbert - Assistant Director, Corporate

Nichola Holderness - Community Leadership Manager, S&ELCP

Rebecca James - Scrutiny and Policy Officer

Greg Macrdechian - Interim Local Plan Lead (Virtual)

Amanda Seaton - Lead Section 106 Monitoring Officer

Emily Spicer - Assistant Director, Wellbeing and Community
Leadership

Roxanne Warrick - Healthy Living Strategic Lead

Laura Allen - Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:
Apologies were received from Councillor Alex Hall.

It was noted that in accordance with Regulation 13 of the Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, notice
had been given that Councillor Ruchira Yarsley had been appointed to the
Committee in place of Councillor Robert Watson and that Councillor David
Hall had been appointed to the Committee in place of Councillor Claire
Arnold for this Meeting only.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY):

At this point in the Meeting, Members were invited to declare any relevant
interests. None were received.

OC1



94,

95.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025
MINUTES:

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 28th January 2025 were agreed as a
correct record.

ACTIONS:
Members noted that the following Actions were now complete.

Actions from the Meeting held on 19 November 2024

Action No. 74(b) - completed.

Actions from the Meeting held on 28 January 2025

Action No. 85 - completed.
Comments were received as follows:
Action No. 74 (b) - ‘Q2 2024-25 Performance and Risk Report - Hug

footfall data for Q2 2024’ from the Meeting held on 19 November 2024,
page 118 of the Agenda refers.

¢ A Member highlighted concerns that footfall figures had been
potentially inaccurate.

Action No. 74(c) - ‘In reference to Strategic Risk ELDC20: Capacity’,
clarification is requested on when the report was being made available on
how much the Council had spent on consultants’ from the Meeting held on
19th November 2024, page 174 of the Agenda refers.

e A Member stressed the importance of informing the Committee of
the amount of money the Council had spent on consultants. In
response, the Chairman explained to Members that the report had
been delayed until the May 2025 Overview Committee Meeting to
enable the inclusion of the full financial year’s data. James Gilbert,
Assistant Director (Corporate) further advised Members that the
report was to resume on an annual basis and was being made
available to the Committee as soon as possible.

e A Member requested detail in the report to explain the issues the
Council was experiencing with capacity which had led to the need to
hire consultants. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate)
assured Members that a detailed narrative would be included in the
report.

Action No. 81 - '‘To invite the officer responsible for Section 106
Agreements to the next Overview Committee Meeting to support the
update on S106 Agreements and their distribution’ from the Meeting held
on 28 January 2025, page 51 of the Agenda refers.

OC 2



96.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

e A Member expressed concern that no Section 106 monies had been
received by local doctors’ surgeries or schools in Stickney and
awaited further clarification in the upcoming Agenda item on S106
Agreements.

SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE:

The Chairman welcomed Amanda Seaton (Lead Section 106 Monitoring
Officer) to the Meeting who was in attendance to deliver a presentation to
Members on Section 106 Agreements alongside Greg Macrdechian
(Interim Local Plan Lead) who was in attendance virtually to provide an
update on the NHS multiplier allocation in East Lindsey district (a copy of
the presentation is attached at Appendix A to the Minutes).

Members were provided with an update in relation to Action No. 28 from
the Meeting held on 23 July 2025. The Interim Local Plan Lead explained
to Members that the Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board had responded
that the only variable in the calculations for Section 106 multiplier
allocations across Lincolnshire was the application of the latest census
information to indicate the likely associated population growth, and that
outside of this within Lincolnshire all other factors remained the same.

The Lead Section 106 Monitoring Officer explained to Members that an
update on financial information on Section 106 agreements had been
delayed due to staffing and that a future update would be provided to the
Committee once PSPS had completed a deep dive into the Section 106
ledgers and reserves.

Members were further advised that a member of the Section 106
monitoring team would be based at the Horncastle Hub on Thursdays each
week to increase presence and answer any in-person enquiries.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

e A Member stressed the importance of funding being used for GP
Services and queried whether the 40,000 caravans on the east
coast was included in calculations for where Section 106 monies
was being allocated and spent. In response, the Interim Local Plan
Lead advised Members that clarification would be requested from
the Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) to determine whether
caravans were being accounted for.

e The Chairman commented on the impact of yearlong tourism to
health services on the coast.

e A Member highlighted an example in Sibsey where S106 money had

been divided between four surgeries in Boston rather than the
nearest doctor’s surgery.

OC3



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

A Member further queried the process that was in place to ensure
that money was allocated to individual doctors’ surgeries.

In response, the Interim Local Plan Lead advised Members that
funding allocation needed to meet certain requirements and
depended on the terms written in each Section 106 Agreement.
Members were further advised that there had been greater leniency
in where the funds were distributed which had resulted in groups of
surgeries being able to benefit.

The Chairman highlighted concerns with large housing
developments and the lack of infrastructure, including doctors’
surgeries and schools to support them.

A Member queried who was responsible for controlling where S106
money was distributed. In response, the Lead Section 106
Monitoring Officer advised Members that Lincolnshire County
Council and the NHS were responsible for assigning the money and
that the Council monitored the money to ensure that it was spent
according to the agreements in place. Members were further
advised that the Section 106 Monitoring team could examine the
reason that money was not being distributed to specific doctors’
surgeries.

Referring to Appendix Al - Section 106 FAQs, a Member queried
the reason that developments such as the Hatton Compressor
Station which had recently been upgraded and was classed as a
Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH) Site had no Section
106 Agreements in place, pages 55 the Agenda refers. 1In
response, the Lead Section 106 Monitoring Officer explained to
Members that a response from the Planning Department was
needed for questions relating to the process undertaken for
securing Section 106 Agreements.

A Member further queried whether all energy producing plants
including anaerobic digesters would meet the requirements for
Section 106 Agreements. In response, the Lead Section 106
Monitoring Officer advised Members that the Council’s senior
planning lawyer or Development Management Lead was best placed
to provide a response.

A Member queried who was responsible for paying legal fees, pages
55 and 56 of the Agenda refer. In response, the Lead Section 106
Monitoring Officer explained to Members that the Council was
moving away from Lincolnshire Legal Services and that the
Council’s Senior Planning Lawyer was responsible for recharging the
developer.

Further to a discussion it was agreed that Andy Booth,
Development Management Lead be invited to the next Meeting of

0oC4



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

the Committee to update Members on the process for securing
Section 106 Agreements.

Members further agreed that an update on Section 106 Agreement
financial information would be added to the Committee’s Work
Programme for 6 months’ time.

e A Member queried the reasons that East Lindsey District Council
was not charging Community Infrastructure Levies (CILs) and
highlighted the need for support for schools and playgrounds. In
response, the Chairman did not recall the Council having ever used
CILs as it was Council policy to utilise Section 106 Agreements.
The Lead Section 106 Monitoring Officer further advised Members
that CILs could have disadvantages.

e A Member queried whether the money from CILs was distributed to
Parish Councils. In response, the Lead Section 106 Monitoring
Officer advised Members that Parish Councils could submit
proposals for where funding was allocated.

e The Chairman provided an example where Horncastle Town Council
had attempted to request funding for a playpark and the location
did not meet the requirements of being directly affected by the
development in order to receive funding.

¢ A Member highlighted concerns that East Lindsey district was
missing out on money coming into the area from developments.

e Members discussed the processes in place for ensuring that money
was allocated to local doctors’ surgeries. In response, the Lead
Section 106 Monitoring Officer explained to Members that housing
developments usually had a 50% occupancy requirement before
distribution of the funding was triggered. Members were further
advised that more than one Section 106 agreement could be in
place per project which could trigger at various stages of a project
across a period of several years.

Further to a discussion, it was agreed to circulate the Presentation
Slides on Section 106 Agreements for East Lindsey through
Members’ Point Brief.
No further comments or questions were received.
The Chairman thanked Amanda Seaton (Lead Section 106 Monitoring
Officer) and Greg Macrdechian (Interim Local Plan Lead) for their
informative update.

N.B Amanda Seaton (Lead Section 106 Monitoring Officer) and Greg
Macrdechian (Interim Local Plan Lead) left the Meeting at 10.45am.

OC5



97.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

SOUTH & EAST LINCOLNSHIRE PARTNERSHIP'S HEALTHY LIVING
BOARD:

The Chairman welcomed Emily Spicer, Assistant Director (Wellbeing and
Community Leadership), Roxanne Warrick (Healthy Living Strategic Lead)
and Councillor William Gray (Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better
Ageing) to the Meeting.

Councillor William Gray presented Members with an update on South &
East Lincolnshire Partnership’s Healthy Living Board and recommendations
from SELCP joint scrutiny’s review of Health & Wellbeing across the
subregion, pages 61 to 80 of the Agenda refer.

Members were advised that the South & East Lincolnshire’s Healthy Living
Board was established to provide a sub-regional platform for health, local
government and third sector organisations to come together to reduce
health inequalities and improve health outcomes in South and East
Lincolnshire, and that the report was being presented to each of the South
& East Lincolnshire Partnership’s sovereign Scrutiny Committees.

Councillor William Gray drew Members attention to recommendation
seven regarding further developing district councils’ preventative approach
to poor health, reduce risk of exclusion and prevent pressure on local
services, pages 65 and 66 of the Agenda refers.

The Assistant Director (Wellbeing and Community Leadership) referred
Members to Appendix 1 - Lincolnshire District Councils’ Health & Wellbeing
Strategy Executive Summary, Appendix 2 - SECLP Healthy Living Board
Terms of Reference and Appendix 3 which provided a background on the
Campus for Future Living, pages 71 to 80 of the Agenda refer.

The Chairman further advised Members that discussion on the Campus for
Future Living would take place in the upcoming Agenda Item.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

e Members spoke in appreciation of the digital inclusion and work
undertaken in the local area.

e A Member voiced concerns that report authors did not always go
out and speak with people on the ground to gain different
perspectives. In response, the Assistant Director (Wellbeing and
Community Leadership) assured Members that report writers were
regularly out in the field and speaking to people to understand the
challenges.

e A Member highlighted the issues with inequality on the east coast

and the difficulties in attracting people into the area for
employment.

OC6



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

A Member further highlighted the issues people were experiencing
with debt and the need for support. In response, the Healthy Living
Strategic Lead assured Members that the Council had been working
with Lincs Digital and funding the drop-in sessions for a number of
years to assist with this.

A Member voiced concerns that Lincs Digital had ceased providing
services in Louth due to failing to meet Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs). In response, the Assistant Director (Wellbeing and
Community Leadership) advised the Committee that Members
feedback was always valuable in learning ways in which the Council
could improve.

The Healthy Living Strategic Lead assured Members that Lincs
Digital had not been permanently stopped in Louth and that they
were balancing high demand for when services would return.

In relation to debt advice, a Member highlighted the lack of
information available for contacting Citizens Advice in Louth when
the office was closed. In response, the Assistant Director
(Wellbeing and Community Leadership) advised Members that face-
to-face appointments were available through the telephone booking
service and that the Council continued to fund Citizens Advice who
was the local delivery partner for the government’s money advice
and pension service debt advice.

Members were further advised that additional information would be
circulated following the Meeting and through Members’ Point Brief
(MPB) on the services provided by Citizens Advice in the local area
and how to make referrals for debt advice.

A Member highlighted the potential for disconnects between the
Council and the Community and the need to inform Members of
opportunities to interact with neighbourhoods and local
communities.

The Chairman commented that Lincs Digital was very effective in
keeping people informed. In response, Councillor William Gray as
Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better Ageing explained to
Members that MPB was also being used to provide information on
when and where neighbourhood walkabouts were taking place.

A Member commented on the benefits of identifying who the
neighbourhood officers were for Platform Housing. In response,
Councillor William Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and
Better Ageing explained to Members that the neighbourhood
officers were always the first point of contact, and that feedback
would be provided to Platform Housing to make sure that residents
were kept informed.

oCc7



98.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

e A Member commented that the font in MPB was too small to read
and that MPB could contain too much information for Councillors to
digest. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate) advised
Members that the font would be made larger in future editions of
MPB.

e A Member queried the format in which digital newsletters were
accessible for people who could not read and write. In response,
Councillor William Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and
Better Ageing advised Members that special arrangements were in
place for people that needed assistance. Claire Woodward, Director
of Community Investment from ACIS Group assured Members that
communication needs were surveyed when new residents signed up
to their service so that communication methods could be tailored to
individual needs.

e The Chairman commented that it would be beneficial for the
Citizens Advice office in Louth to have a sign on the door to inform
people how to seek support when they were closed.

No further comments or questions were received.

The Chairman thanked the Assistant Director (Wellbeing and Community
Leadership) for an excellent report.

Following which it was,

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

UPDATE ON THE CAMPUS FOR FUTURE LIVING:

The Chairman further introduced Emily Spicer (Assistant Director -
Wellbeing and Community Leadership), Roxanne Warrick (Healthy Living
Strategic Lead), Councillor William Gray (Portfolio Holder for Communities
and Better Ageing), Hannah Taylor-Dales, Head of Business Development
and Claire Woodward, Director of Community Investment from ACIS
Group to provide an update on the Campus for Future Living (a copy of
the presentation is attached at Appendix B to the Minutes).

Claire Woodward, Director of Community Investment from ACIS Group
advised Members that 450 people had attended the Campus for Future
Living preview day and that a soft opening had been scheduled for 22"
April 2025 to enable the induction and training of new recruits, followed
by the public opening on 28 April in the lead up to an official opening on
12" June 2025.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

oC 8



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

A Member queried whether the University of Lincoln would provide
off-site courses at the Campus for Future Living. In response, the
Director of Community Investment (ACIS Group) explained to
Members that the long-term plan was for research to be undertaken
at the Campus for Future Living that examined the issues and
barriers that existed in the local community.

e A Member further queried the type of research that would be
undertaken. In response, the Director of Community Investment
(ACIS Group) advised Members that research would centre around
health and wellbeing and could range from clinical and non-clinical
to social or economic research.

e A Member queried whether the accommodation facilities was aimed
at short term stays for educational staff or for families. In
response, the Director of Community Investment (ACIS Group)
advised Members that short term lodgings were intended for
housing students such as nurse practitioners or those on placement
opportunities.  Members were further advised that there was
potential to develop the grass space next to the Campus where
research was needed on long term housing needs.

e A Member queried whether the research undertaken would examine
sea defences. In response, the Director of Community Investment
(ACIS Group) advised Members that sea defences were not within
the remit of the project.

e A Member queried whether the Campus for Future Living could
accommodate away visitors for conferences and seminars. In
response, the Director of Community Investment (ACIS Group)
advised Members that the accommodation was limited to 7 beds
and that the top floor had capacity for 100 people including
catering, breakout rooms and a cafe.

e A Member queried the period of time needed for repayment of the
investment to occur. In response, the Assistant Director (Wellbeing
and Community Leadership) advised Members that it was estimated
that the investment would reach repayment in 10 years. Councillor
William Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better Ageing
further advised Members that there had been a 10-year business
case for the Towns Fund Project funding.

e Councillor Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better
Ageing concluded that the Campus for Future Living was an
exceptional achievement for utilising intensive community
engagement and was being widely observed by universities across
the UK and clinicians from Europe as a ground-breaking initiative.

No further comments or questions were received.

OoCo9o



99.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

The Chairman thanked Emily Spicer (Assistant Director - Wellbeing and
Community Leadership), Roxanne Warrick (Healthy Living Strategic Lead),
Councillor William Gray (Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better
Ageing), Hannah Taylor-Dales, Head of Business Development and Claire
Woodward, Director of Community Investment from ACIS Group for the
informative update.

N.B Hannah Taylor-Dales, Head of Business Development and Claire
Woodward, Director of Community Investment from ACIS Group left the
Meeting at 11.45am.

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
VOLUNTEER SCHEME UPDATE:

The Chairman welcomed Nichola Holderness, Community Leadership
Manager - South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (S&ELCP) to
the Meeting and noted apologies for Alison Carlisle, Volunteer Co-
Ordinator who was not able to be in attendance.

Members were presented with an update on the South and East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Volunteer Scheme and work undertaken
in the last six months, pages 81 to 90 of the Agenda refer.

The Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) advised Members on
progress and confirmed that the term ‘trusted volunteers’ had been
revised following the Overview Committee’s comments in October 2024.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

e In relation to the East Lindsey Investment Fund, a Member queried
the process that was in place to enable Parish Councils to access
the fund. In response, the Assistant Director (Community
Leadership and Wellbeing) explained to Members that there were a
number of opportunities available for communities and parish
councils and that she could direct specific enquires from Members
to the relevant officer.

¢ A Member queried whether volunteers in East Lindsey district were
taking on roles that should have been allocated as paid
employment. In response, the Assistant Director (Community
Leadership and Wellbeing) assured Members that none of the roles
undertaken by volunteers were roles that should be performed by
paid employees.

e A Member queried whether volunteering schemes were being
implemented in the wider East Lindsey district. In response, the
Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) advised Members that
the Volunteer Co-ordinator was looking at the volunteering offer for
the whole of East Lindsey along with the rest of the Partnership.

0C 10



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

e A Member highlighted that greater volunteering initiatives were
being implemented in the south of the Partnership and that East
Lindsey district should receive a greater share of the opportunities.

In response, the Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP)
explained to Members that the Council had additional funds to
develop the scheme in East Lindsey and that the Volunteer Co-
ordinator split her time between the three Councils. Members
were assured that a significant amount of work was being
undertaken in the background and that the aim was to continue
looking at ways to improve the offer for volunteering opportunities
in East Lindsey.

Further to a discussion, it was agreed to request an update on
progress with volunteering opportunities in 6 months’ time and to
invite Councillor Sarah Devereaux as Portfolio Holder for
Partnerships to provide further insight.

e Councillor William Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and
Better Ageing advised Members that the Volunteer Co-ordinator had
been active in supporting the training of the Age Friendly
Ambassadors. Members were further advised that the term ‘Age
Friendly Ambassadors’ had recently been changed to ‘Ageing Well
Ambassadors’.

e The Chairman noted the value of sharing information and
signposting people to points of contact for volunteering
opportunities. In response, the Community Leadership Manager
(S&ELCP) explained to Members that a communications campaign
was in progress and that further information would be circulated in
MPB.

¢ A Member commented that it was expected that 46% of the work

undertaken to develop volunteering opportunities should be
evidenced in East Lindsey district.

No further comments or questions were received.

The Chairman thanked Emily Spicer Assistant Director (Community

Leadership and Wellbeing) and Nichola Holderness, Community Leadership

Manager (S&ELCP) for the report.

Following which it was,

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

OoC11



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

100. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS CROWDFUNDING
SCHEME - TWO YEAR PROGRESS:

The Chairman further introduced Nichola Holderness, Community
Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) to provide Members with an update on the
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Crowdfunding Scheme, pages 91 to
108 of the Agenda refer.

The Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) advised Members that the
South and East Lincolnshire Crowdfund launched in Spring 2023 and that
in its first two years the scheme had supported ten projects totalling
£105,509 across the sub-region.

Members were advised that the report provided an overview of activity
and how it was delivering much needed financial support to community
groups in line with the intentions of the three councils within South and
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership who had jointly committed to
establishing an innovative Crowdfunding scheme in 2022.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

e A Member queried where the Rural Friendship Group was located.
In response, the Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP)
confirmed that the group was located in Authorpe, Lincolnshire.

e A Member queried whether the Crowdfunding scheme was jointly
funded. In response the Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP)
advised Members that the total of the project was funded by the
community or backers from businesses and that a maximum of
£5,000 could be pledged from East Lindsey District Council.

e The Chairman queried where the Crafty Cabin was located. In
response the Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) advised
Members that the Crafty Cabin was located in Friskney,
Lincolnshire.

e A Member queried the ways in which the Rural Friendship Group
was kept informed of the scheme. In response, the Community
Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) advised Members that workshops
with up to 50 groups and briefing sessions had been held alongside
paid promotions, including leaflets being placed in community
venues.

e The Chairman queried whether parish councils were being kept
informed. In response the Community Leadership Manager
(S&ELCP) advised Members that parish councils had been included
in communication efforts and had participated in online sessions.

e A Member further queried whether there was a link to access the

information online. In response the Community Leadership
Manager (S&ELCP) advised Members that a ‘how to’ guide was

0C 12



101.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

available online and that information would be circulated to
Members through the Communications team.

e At the indulgence of the Chairman, Councillor Daniel Simpson spoke
in support of the Spacehive project and queried whether a weblink
to grants could be placed on the front of the Council’s website for
quick and easy access to information.

In response, the Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) assured
Members that the website was being made as simple as possible to
access and that the Committee’s comments would be relayed to the
Communications team.

No further comments or questions were received.

The Chairman thanked Nichola Holderness, Community Leadership
Manager (S&ELCP) for the report.

Following which it was,
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

N.B Nichola Holderness, Community Leadership Manager (S&ELCP) and
Brendan Arnold, Interim Finance Director and S151 Officer left the
Meeting at 12.11pm.

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LINCOLNSHIRE - UPDATE:

The Chairman referred Members to the briefing papers from Councillor Jill
Makinson-Sanders, the Outside Body Appointee to the Health Scrutiny
Committee (HSC) for Lincolnshire following its Meetings held on 19th
February 2025 and 12th March 2025, and a Working Group Meeting held
on 12th February 2025, pages 109 to 124 of the Agenda refer.

The Outside Body Appointee advised Members that a response from the
Humber Acute Service Review was awaited and that a query had been
raised on where ambulances were sent to for patients to receive stroke
treatment.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.
¢ A Member queried whether stroke services were still provided at
Pilgrim Hospital Boston. In response the Outside Body Appointee

advised Members that the stroke ward at Boston Pilgrim Hospital
had closed.

0OC 13



102.

(a)

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

e The Outside Body appointee stressed the importance of stroke
services and highlighted the provisions at different hospitals in
Lincolnshire.

e The Chairman queried whether the work undertaken by the Campus
for Future Living was being fed into the HSC. In response,
Councillor William Gray as Portfolio Holder for Communities and
Better Ageing explained to Members that there was no formal link
and that the Campus for Future Living’s Steering Group could guide
the development of future connections.

No further comments or questions were received.

The Chairman thanked the Outside Body Appointee for her valuable
contribution on reporting back from the HSC.

N.B Councillor William Gray, Portfolio Holder for Communities and Better
Aging, Emily Spicer, Assistant Director (Community Leadership and
Wellbeing) and Roxanne Warrick, Service Manger (Healthy Living) left the
Meeting at 12.18pm.

UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY AND POLICY PANELS INCLUDING
QUALITY CHECKING OF FINAL REPORTS:

Joint Scrutiny of the Partnership Enviro Crime Enforcement
Contract:

Rebecca James, Scrutiny and Policy Officer introduced the final report for
the Joint Scrutiny of the Partnership Enviro Crime Enforcement Contract,
pages 125 to 138 of the Agenda refer.

Members were advised that the Overview and Scrutiny Committees of
Boston Borough Council, South Holland District Council, and East Lindsey
District Council had commissioned a joint Scrutiny Task & Finish Group to
undertake a review of the Partnership Enviro Crime Enforcement Contract
and that the report was being presented to the Committee for noting and
to agree the associated recommendations.

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer advised Members that the Panel Chairman
Councillor Edward Mossop had intended to attend the Committees at all
three Councils but had unfortunately been unable to attend today’s
Meeting.

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

e The Chairman commented on the excellent report and supported
that it was presented to Full Council.

e Councillor Daniel Simpson as a Member of the Scrutiny Panel spoke
on the ways in which coverage by the Kingdom team could be

OC 14



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

improved and highlighted the need for additional capacity to install
surveillance cameras in hotspot locations.

In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate) advised Members
that legislation had changed since surveillance cameras had been
used historically by the Council, and that Members comments would
be relayed to Christian Allen, Assistant Director (Regulatory) to
determine ways in which surveillance cameras could be installed in
hotspot locations in line with the recommendation.

e Members stressed the need for more public bins.

e A Member highlighted that the disposal of chewing gum was a
significant issue and that its use had been banned in Singapore.

e A Member highlighted the need to lay foundations for the future by
educating children and their parents on the correct way to dispose
of litter.

e A Member queried who was responsible for fly tipping. In response,
Councillor Daniel Simpson advised Members that Kingdom had been
awarded the contract to pursue fly tipping to the courts and that
due to staff limitation, Kingdom focused on challenging individuals
rather than taking legal action.

e A Member highlighted that the identity of those who had dropped
litter could only be pursued if a Council Officer was present to
photograph and record the evidence.

e Members discussed the differences in payment options for fines that
were addressed through magistrate’s courts whereas envirocrime
fines had to be paid upfront.

No further comments or questions were received.
Following which it was,
RESOLVED:

e That the Joint Scrutiny of the Partnership Enviro Crime Enforcement

Contract Final Report be noted and the recommendations be

agreed.

e That the report be presented to Full Council on 215t May 2025.

0OC 15



(b)

(c)

(d)

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

Scrutiny Panel Update - Review of support for Towns and Parishes
across East Lindsey:

Members were referred to the briefing paper, pages 139 to 140 of the
Agenda refer.

Councillor Ruchira Yarsley as Chairman of the Scrutiny Panel advised
Members that the Panel would meet for a final time on 26th March 2025
to agree the report and recommendations, and that the final report would
be presented to the June meeting of Overview Committee to allow time
for conclusion of County Council Elections in May 2025.

At the indulgence of the Chairman, Councillor Daniel Simpson commented
that the Leader of the Council may need to advise on the impact of
devolution on future considerations for town and parish councils. In
response, the Chairman advised Members that there was still time for
additional considerations as the final proposals for Local Government Local
Reorganisation were not due until November 2025.

Scrutiny Panel Update - Car Parking in East Lindsey

Members were referred to the briefing paper, pages 141 to 142 of the
Agenda refer.

The Scrutiny and Policy Officer advised the Committee that following
requests for additional members, the Panel had secured a full membership
and that the work of the panel would commence following the County
Council elections in May 2025.

Project Scoping Template - To explore effective development
opportunities and support for Members:

Members were referred to the scoping document, pages 143 to 144 of the
Agenda refer.

N.B Councillor Dick Edginton left the Meeting at 12.41pm.

e In reference to external witnesses, a Member commented that
Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) had a Key Performance Indicator
(KPI) for a 5 working day deadline for the turnaround of Minutes
and that Nigel West, Head of Democratic Services at LCC would
make a good witness. In response, the Scrutiny and Policy Officer
confirmed to Members that Nigel West would be added to the list of
witnesses.

e In relation to Local Government Reorganisation, the Chairman
assured Members that any work the Council undertook before the
formation of the new Councils would still hold value.

N.B Councillor Dick Edginton returned to the Meeting at 12.45pm.

0OC 16



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

103. QUARTER 3 24/25 PERFORMANCE AND RISK REPORT:

The Chairman welcomed James Gilbert, Assistant Director (Corporate) to
present the Quarter 3 24-25 Performance and Risk Report, pages 145 to
198 of the Agenda refer.

Members attention was drawn to the Q3 performance indicators with
targeted performance levels (Appendix 1), and Q3 risks (Appendix 2).

Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward.

A Member highlighted the need for greater narrative of the risks.

In reference to the ‘Percentage of streets grading b and above -
detritus’, a Member queried the reason that it had received a red
status for Q2 2024/25 when a contract was in place with Kingdom,
page 158 of the Agenda refers. In response, the Assistant Director
(Corporate) clarified that the Key Performance Indicator (KPI) was
related to the street cleaning service provided by the
Neighbourhoods team and that seasonal factors had occurred
between October and December 2024.

A Member queried whether Kingdom was performing adequately.
In response, the Chairman clarified to Members that the
Neighbourhoods team was tasked with cleaning the streets whereas
Kingdom’s role was to enforce the regulations.

The Chairman highlighted issues that had been experienced with
street sweepers breaking down in Horncastle which may have
affected performance.

In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate) advised Members
that a more detailed explanation would be requested from the
Neighbourhoods team and brought back to the Committee.

In reference to KPIs for Efficiency and Effectiveness, a Member
queried whether there was enough capacity in the Information
Governance department, page 160 of the Agenda refers. In
response, the Assistant Director (Corporate) clarified that the
indicator was not red as a result of services not responding quickly
enough and that a service review had been approved with a view to
bring in additional capacity.

In relation to’ Housing Benefit Changes speed of processing (Year to
Date) (PSPS)’, the Chairman queried the reason that the target had
remained red. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate)
advised Members that status for Q3 2024/25 was above DWP
(Department of Work and Pensions) expectations around
processing. Members were further advised that the status had
remained red because it had not reached the target that had been

0oC 17



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

set for PSPS due to the volume of housing benefit changes being
processed.

A Member queried whether the volume of work was a result of the
cost-of-living crisis, page 163 of the Agenda refers. In response,
the Assistant Director (Corporate) agreed that the cost-of-living
crisis was a possible explanation.

In reference to ‘Average answer rate - Revenues & Benefits (PSPS)’
a Member queried the red status, page 165 of the Agenda refers.
In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate) advised Members
that the red status had occurred due to the complexity of the calls
received which had taken more time to answer.

In reference to ‘Business Centre Occupation, Mablethorpe -
Percentage of total gross internal area occupied’, a Member
highlighted that one business had moved from the Mablethorpe
Business Centre to the Campus for Future Living, page 166 of the
Agenda refers. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate)
advised Members that historically, Mablethorpe’s business centre
had been less successful that the business centre in Louth.

In reference to 'Percentage of Kingfisher Caravan Park income
received against agreed budget', the Chairman queried the
differences in colour for the Key Performance Indicators, page 166
of the Agenda refers. In response, the Assistant Director
(Corporate) confirmed that the indicator had been red for the
previous two quarters and that the shading in the previous quarter
was a lighter tone to make the current quarter more obvious.

N.B Councillor Neil Jones left the Meeting at 12.54pm.

At the indulgence of the Chairman, Councillor Daniel Simpson
highlighted the number of pitches available at Kingfisher Caravan
Park and queried inefficiencies in the park’s operations and
maintenance that had led to a decreased availability of caravans for
income generation, page 166 and 167 of the Agenda refer. In
response, the Chairman advised Members that a report on Invest
East Lindsey was being presented to the Audit and Governance
Committee on Wednesday 26" March 2025 and that concerns could
be raised with the Shareholder Supervisory Board. The Assistant
Director (Corporate) clarified to Members that concerns were for
the Council to address as the Council was responsible for
infrastructure and operation of the site.

OC 18



Overview Committee
25.03.2025

N.B Councillor Neil Jones returned to the Meeting at 12.56pm.

A Member queried the reason that KPIs were reported in
percentages. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate)
advised Members that figures were reported as trend indicators as
they provided baselines for measuring against in the future.

In reference to ‘Council run stall occupancy level (Markets)’, a
Member commented that more information should be available than
the status being noted as ‘trend only’ and highlighted expectations
for the future of local markets, page 172 of the Agenda refers.

In reference to the KPIs for Visitor numbers/number of tickets sold
for leisure venues, a Member sought clarification on the definition of
leisure venues and queried the reasons for the reduction in
numbers for Quarter 3 2024/25 compared to Quarter 2 2024/25,
page 172 of the Agenda refers. In response, the Assistant Director
(Corporate) advised Members that the differences were seasonal,
and that further clarification would be obtained on whether the
definition of leisure venues referred to all Magna Vitae facilities.

In reference to the number of gym members, the Committee
queried the reason for the large increase in gym members from
5,685 in Quarter 2 2024/25 to 17,213 in Quarter 3 2024/25, page
173 of the Agenda refers. In response, the Assistant Director
(Corporate) advised Members that clarification would be sought and
brought back to the Committee.

A Member queried the reason that Horncastle leisure’s performance
was lower than the other leisure facilities. In response, the
Assistant Director (Corporate) advised Members that Horncastle
had closed for a period of winter maintenance which had affected
performance data.

A Member queried whether all ‘trend only’ status’ would become
targeted measures. In response, the Assistant Director (Corporate)
explained to Members that the Council would not target aspects
that were outside of its control.

A Member further queried whether Kingdom’s KPIs were to remain
as trends rather than become targeted measures. In response, the
Assistant Director (Corporate) advised Members that clarification
would be requested from the Assistant Director (Corporate) so that
Members could have oversight of performance measures in place
for those assigned as ‘trend only’.

No further comments or questions were received.

Following which, it was

RESOLVED:

0C 19



104.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

That the Quarter 3 24/25 Performance and Risk Report be noted.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION TRACKER:

Members were referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation
Tracker, pages 199 to 232 of the Agenda refer.

Members were invited to review the tracker and put their comments and
questions forward.

e A Member commented on their disappointment with the lack of
overall progress with updates on the recommendation tracker. In
response, the Scrutiny and Policy Officer advised Members that a
reminder for updates had been sent out later than expected and
that newer responses had missed the deadline for publishing with
the Agenda. Members were assured that further requests for
updates would be made following the Meeting.

To _monitor the implementation of Magna Vitae's 5-year plan, including
Key Performance Indicators (part 2)

Recommendation No 3 ‘Property / assets team to ensure they have the
correct funding mechanism to allow for proper maintenance and repair of
the facilities when required’, page 210 of the Agenda refers.

e A Member stressed the importance of maintenance and the need for
the Council to continue to undertake work prior to Local
Government Reorganisation. In response, the Scrutiny and Policy
Officer explained to Members that the recommendation was
intended for future tenders to ensure that work was undertaken
correctly.

¢ Members discussed the potential for a scrutiny topic on
maintenance. In response, the Chairman encouraged Members to
submit a scrutiny topic suggestion form.

¢ A Member queried whether the Council traded with countries that
used slave labour or had any procurement policies to safeguard
where contracts were secured. In response, the Scrutiny and Policy
Officer advised Members that measures were in place for where the
Council invested money.

Partnership Task Group - To review the scope and proposed arrangements
for a Sub-Regional Leisure Facilities Operator Contract, Recommendations
No 1 to 4, pages 220 and 221 of the Agenda refer.

e A Member queried whether further updates were available on the
Sub-Regional Leisure Facilities Operator Contract. In response, the
Scrutiny and Policy Officer advised Members that the procurement

OC 20



105.

Overview Committee
25.03.2025

process was expected to end in September or October 2025 and
that updates would be forthcoming.

Review of the Carbon Reduction Plan and associated carbon reduction
activity at ELDC.

Recommendation No 1 'For the Procurement Team to provide an annual
update to Overview on Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG)
reporting’, page 229 of the Agenda refers.

e A Member queried the absence of the Appendix referred to in the
update for March 2025. In response, the Scrutiny and Policy Officer
advised Members the Appendix would be circulated to Members
following the Meeting.

The Chairman thanked everyone for their comments.

No further comments or questions were received.

Following which it was,

RESOLVED:

That the Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracker be noted.
EXECUTIVE/COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN:

Members were presented with the Executive/Council Forward Plan 2024-
25, pages 233 to 242 of the Agenda refer and were invited for their
comments.

e In reference to Unauthorised Caravan Occupancy, a Member
stressed the importance of making haste to tackle the issues and to
leave a legacy prior to Local Government Reorganisation, page 235
of the Agenda refers.

e A Member queried the reason that numerous items on the Forward
Plan were continually reviewed. In response, the Scrutiny and
Policy Officer advised Members that clarification would be obtained
and brought back to the Committee.

e The Chairman highlighted the lengthy delays and revisions with
approving changes to the waste services delivery model to meet the
Simpler Recycling requirements of the Environment Act 2021, page
236 of the Agenda refers. Members were advised that further
clarification would be sought.

e A Member queried the reasons that the Council continued to match
fund the SO Festival in Skegness. In response, the Scrutiny and
Policy Officer advised Members that additional clarification would be
requested and brought back to the Committee.

0oC 21



Overview Committee
25.03.2025
No comments or questions were received.
Following which it was,

RESOLVED:

That the Executive/Council Forward Plan 2024-25 be noted.

106. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:

The date of the next Meeting was confirmed as 6™ May 2025.

The Meeting closed at 1.23 pm.

OC 22



Appendix A

Section 106

J ' o i
Mk East Lindsey

Agreements for East
Lindsey

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

Overview Committee 10:00, March 25t 2025




o
Q

Q
()
N

%g 811;04/ ,\/
% .\L%u ¢ East Llndsey

HOLLAND
"GHGO°

Section 106 / Planning Obligations ..

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

§$ 0 U TH

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables a local planning
authority to enter into a negotiated agreement — a planning obligation — to
mitigate the impact of a specific development, to make it acceptable in planning
terms.

¢ They are used to achieve planning objectives, lessen the impact of development
and/or compensate for loss or damage caused by development.

Legally a planning obligation must be:

1. Necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms;
2. Directly relate to the proposed development; and
3

. Fairly and reasonably relate in scale and kind to the proposed development.

See further details of the regulations of planning obligations:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations




o
Q

Q
()
W

S 0 U T H @?S;T,Ofv ‘\/
H .\L%u, » East Llndsey

OLLAND %

Section 106 Obligations R

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

Once a section 106 agreement has been signed, it is an obligation, but it will only
be actioned if the planning permission is implemented and reaches the trigger
point for payment.

Trigger points include the commencement of development, or more often prior to a
certain percentage of a development being occupied (for example 50%).

Each section 106 agreement can contain various separate financial contributions
as part of their conditions, with the standard contributions being Affordable
Housing, Education and Healthcare.

Not all obligations will relate to contributions payable to ELDC. Some will relate to
contributions payable to LCC (Education / Highways) whilst others will relate to
contributions eventually payable to third parties, for example parish councils or
healthcare providers (NHS).

Please see further information on our new FAQs page on the ELDC website:
Section 106 FAQs - East Lindsey District Council




-
o]

Q

I0)

N

S 0 UTH OSTO

% ~
3 East Llndsey

HOLLAND
[DISTRICT COUNCIL] OUGH o0°

Section 106 Monitoring Officer Role

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

Monitoring Role:

Our monitoring role takes affect once each agreement is signed.

We have extensive spreadsheets covering each Council, where each contribution
and their trigger(s) are monitored on a regular basis, using Building control
completions figures as a guide.

Communication with developers is key to ensure a timely process.

As part of the invoicing process, we calculate indexation. Indexation provides
protection against inflation for Section 106 obligations and ensures that the Council
and Outside Bodies are protected against the cost of delivering infrastructure rising
from the time the agreement is signed.




o
Q

Q
()
Ul

§$ 0 U TH

OSTOA/
’g ‘\/
3 East Llndsey

%,
YGH o0°

Section 106 Overview

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

HOLLAND
[DISTRICT COUNCIL]

Summary:

It has been agreed with PSPS that a ‘deep dive’ into the Section 106 ledgers /
reserves is to be re-scheduled. We are waiting on confirmation of the start date.

The Section 106 Monitoring Team would like to improve communication between
themselves and colleagues/members to ensure enquiries are dealt with effectively
and they understand the regulations and procedures relating to section 106
agreements.

Please contact section106@boston.gov.uk for any individual questions you may
have.

We have appointed a new member of the team this month (Andrea Clark). Moving
forward at least one of us will be based at Horncastle office on Thursdays for any
in-person enquiries.




This page is left intentionally blank

Page 6



Appendix B

ut

2,

ampus

ror Future Living



Who we are






0T =bed

=

EE

AAAN
acis | students

Education / Helping people
Community learning reach their potential

o0 .. . ) .
sclip river@side




~8&cis

1T obed

There to support
when you need us.

THE BLIS Way .

L AWM 510% 3R



The campus
vision



~acis

€T obed

Tackling health inequalities head-on

Development of the Campus for
Future Living site, a centre for
health and care related teaching
and research.



















The real USP
Campus for the community

Delivering wellness for coastal
communities

Access to coastal communities



We want to know wh
you think of our serviges

Join CampusOne

m.mﬂlw“"‘w“w
and join 48280 CampusOne mamber

b b o Camp b, s
esan g s s

i oo Sy e

i an o e w5

g b s 45

e

ot s Do e
prrmim et

e
kfor el ndsie 0%



o 2R UNIVERSITY OF
East Lindsey ¢%: LINCOLN

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tz 9bed

4\

SEVEN
DISTRICTS

Coastal

( l I p Primary Care Network
i I a




ZC 9bed

Memberships to
suit everyone’s
needs

Innovation and
research at its
heart

Poam



-@‘cis

cz abeqd

Handover: 4 April 2025
Soft opening: 22 April 2025
Public opening: 28 April 2025

Official opening: 12 June 2025



>acis N

Thank you



	Minutes
	96 Section 106 Agreements Update:
	98 Update on the Campus for Future Living:

